Solutions to Practice Exam I

Multiple Choice

1. b

2. b

3. c

4. b

5. c

6. d

7. c

8. b

9. a

10. d

11. e

12. a

13. b

14. b

15. e

16. d

17. d

18. d

19. c

24. a

25. a

30. e

31. c

32. b

33. c

34. c

35. a

36. c

37. b

38. a

39. e

40. d

41. a

42. c

43. b

44. a

45. c

46. b

47. d

48. b

49. a

50. c

51. d

52. d

53. c

54. b

55. c

56. b

57. a

58. a

59. d

60. c

61. a

62. b and d

63. c

64. c

65. a

66. b

67. d

68. a

69. d

69. a

DISCUSSION/QUESTIONS

Question 1.  (10 points)  Project Selection.  An automated inspection technology firm (a startup) is looking to create a world-wide-web presence on the Internet.  The firm is anxious to get this facility going as soon as possible.  The firm will need hardware, software as well as application software to support an active server pages technology.  An RFP has been transmitted and proposals have been received.  Each proposal must be graded on a scale of 0 to 100 where 100 is perfection and 0 is on contribution.  The major attributes are Software, Hardware, Upgrading Potential, Time Considerations, and Vendor.  The relative weights for each of these are .3, 2., .2, .1, and .2 respectively.  The software component is further decomposed into Systems software and Applications software, each with relative weights of .5.  The Time Considerations component is further decomposed into an Equipment Delivery date and an Application on-line-by-date, each with relative weights of .5  


Draw the multi-attribute utility tree.  Determine the absolute weights of all the lowest-level elements on the tree.  Determine the grade of each of the two proposals below.  Assume the first costs $250,000, the second  $350,000.  What is the benefit/cost of each proposal?  Which would you choose?

	
	
	
	Grades
	

	ATTRIBUTE
	WEIGHT
	Proposal 1
	Proposal 2

	Software
	
	
	

	
	Systems Software
	.15
	78
	78

	
	Applications Software
	.15
	85
	90

	Hardware
	
	.2
	88
	90

	Upgrading Potential
	.2
	90
	90

	Time Considerations
	
	
	

	
	Equipment delivery date
	.05
	75
	90

	
	Application on-line-by
	.05
	88
	90

	Manufacturer/Vendor
	.2
	67
	80


	ATTRIBUTE
	
	Grades
	

	Software
	WEIGHT
	Proposal 1
	Proposal 2

	
	Systems Software
	0.15
	11.7
	11.7

	
	Applications Software
	0.15
	12.75
	13.5

	Hardware
	
	0.2
	17.6
	18

	Upgrading Potential
	0.2
	18
	18

	Time Considerations
	
	0
	0

	
	Equipment delivery date
	0.05
	3.75
	4.5

	
	Application on-line-by
	0.05
	4.4
	4.5

	Manufacturer/Vendor
	0.2
	13.4
	16

	
	
	TOTALS
	81.6
	86.2

	
	
	Proposal two wins
	


Question 2.  (15 points) A list of major tasks required to create a software product is provided below.  Also given are the predecessor tasks together with the number of days required to accomplish each task.  Use an activity on node representation.  For each node box, determine the ES (earliest start), EF (earliest finish), LS (latest start), and LF (latest finish) numbers.  Draw the NETWORK diagram (activity-in-box) and determine the critical path.

TASK

DESCRIPTION

PREDECESSOR.  
DAYS

A
    Interview management

--


 2

B
    Interview operations

--


 4

C    Interview technical staff

--


 2

D    Prep req. document        
           A,B,C
                                  2

E     Prep RFP and transmit
    D


 2

F    Await receipt of proposals             E


14

G    Write Acceptance Criteria
    D


  2

H    Prototype solution

    E


10

I     Test prototype

    H                                      5

J     Develop prototype project plan
    H


  3

K    Evaluate proposals                     G, F, I, J                              2

L     Request final bid                           K  


  1

M    Make vendor decision
    
    L


  1

THIS WILL BE COVERED ON THE NEXT EXAM.

Question 3 (15 points)  

(5 points) Discuss what is meant by the CATCH-22 in software development.  Illustrate by means of a diagram what the software developer wants to achieve with longer development times.  
{OR}   Discuss what is meant by the learning curve.  Fully describe the implications of the learning curve in project management.  {You only have to do one or the other— the CATCH-22 or the learning curve.}

The CATCH-22 in software development is the conflict between users and software developers.  Software developers want to take longer developing the product so they can be assured of getting the product right and reducing life-cycle costs.  Users, on the other hand, want the product sooner because of pressures derived from the marketplace.  On the one hand, developers understand that, for every dollar spent on development, five dollars will be spent on maintenance.  They would like to try to reduce that if possible by spending more time and money on development.  Users, however, are caught in a time crunch and require the product sooner or the requirements will change and the product as originally defined will be obsolete.

(5 points) Suppose you as PM are asked by your client/customer to do a whole new and different project.  Specifically, the project your client wants you to do involves an enterprise resource planning implementation, whereas your organization’s expertise is Internet development.  Under what circumstances would you accept the opportunity to do this work?  What would be at least three considerations?

Ordinarily, it would not make sense to do this work if the organization had plenty of work to do in its own area of expertise.  It would not make sense to do this work if the organization did not have the resources free to do it who were at least partially capable of completing the tasks involved.  However, if the client is willing to make all kinds of concessions, like a cost-plus contract, and lots of time to get the job done, additional funds for training, etc., it might be feasible.  The organization must, however, consider its opportunity costs because by choosing to do this contract, it might be giving up the opportunity to do some other more profitable contract in its area of expertise.  Obviously, the considerations relate to TIME, COST and SCOPE.  Other considerations relate to whether the team wants to do the ERP project, whether upper management sees this as an opportunity to get involved in a possible new line of projects, etc.

(5 points)  Suppose that the project you are managing is beginning to show signs of slippage.  Specifically, it has come to your attention that the task that Johnny and Joey are working on is behind schedule.  Should you announce the slip right away, or wait three weeks to see if Johnny and Joey can get caught up?  You would like your stakeholders to continue to believe that YOUR project is on time and within budget. Under what circumstances would you go ahead and announce the slip now?  Under what circumstances would you wait?

As project managers we are always required to report any variances with the schedule regardless of whether they cause the project to slip or not.  This is done in our weekly status report.  But the problem requests whether or not to announce a SLIP in the project.  I would announce the slip if the project were relatively short in duration and this task that Johnny and Joey are doing were on the critical path.  If the task is not on the critical path, then I have do determine if the slippage will cause the termination date to slide.  If not, then I wouldn’t worry about it.  It so, and if the project is of quite long duration, then I still might announce the slippage, hoping this might result in the generation of additional resources to  help Johnny and Joey.  Where this task appears in the project is important here as well, for example, if the task appears at nor near the beginning of a lengthy project, clearly it might be possible to get caught up.  If the task resides near the end, this is clearly less likely to be the case.  Are there other tasks that are ahead of schedule?  Can help be found for J & J?  

Question 4.  (10 points) Probabilistic PERT

(2 points) Explain what advantage probabilistic PERT has over deterministic PERT.  

THIS WILL BE COVERED ON THE NEXT EXAM.  Briefly, probabilistic PERT lets you calculate the probability of completing the project by a certain date, or by its completion date.  The probabilities of completing a certain milestone by a certain date can be computed as well.  MS PROJECT will not support probabilistic PERT.

(8 points) Find the duration of the following probabilistic PERT network and determine the critical path.

	Task
	Predecessors
	Optimistic
	Most likely
	Pessimistic

	A
	---
	2
	3
	4

	B
	A
	1
	2
	3

	C
	A
	4
	5
	12

	D
	B
	1
	4
	9

	E
	A,B,C
	6
	7
	12

	F
	C
	7
	9
	11

	G
	B,C,D,E,F
	7
	9
	13


THIS WILL BE COVERED ON THE NEXT EXAM.

Extra Credit  (5 points)  

(4 points) Assume the above project described in Question 4  starts today.  Assume also that all duration numbers are “days.”  Further assume five-day work weeks with no holidays during the period of the project.  What is the completion date of the project?

(1 point) What is the probability the project will actually be completed by that date?

